Question and Answers 11-43 – Second Set

Q1:  Clause 2.4.5., Page 20 – Employment of Professional Staff. You have directed the contractors to not recruit staff (principals and teachers). How should applicants demonstrate the ability to secure the caliber of staffing to meet the Professional Staff requirements contained in the RFP? Will resumes of potential principals and teachers be required in the proposal since you have restricted recruiting for this proposal?

A1:  The expectation is that any vendor submitting proposals has the wherewithal to secure properly licensed Professional Staff once the contract is signed.

Resumes of potential candidates are not required for purposes of evaluating a proposal.

Q2:  Price is a significant factor. There are significant non-personnel costs involved such as computers, instructional books, instructional materials, library books, software licenses, production machine purchase, maintenance and paper, furniture, etc., etc., etc. Some of this may be covered with existing grants and IDOC budgets. It is not all clear what non-personnel costs the contractor must include. Please clarify this so that all contractors are bidding on the same basis of supplies, equipment, material, etc.

A2: The vendor should assume that all non-personnel costs will be the responsibility of the vendor since any grant funded equipment/materials/supplies will be SUPPLEMENTAL to the provision of any educational services, as required by federal grants.
Q3: Secondly, there are existing vendors and programs such as GED testing and NOVANET, C-TECH, etc. Who pays for these vendors? IDOC? We need more clarification. 

A3: NovaNet subscription will remain with IDOC.  CTECH has already been purchased.  The Education Division has been appointed for the GED Testing Center by the national GEDTS with John Nally as Chief Examiner.  The IDOC leases the GED exams on an annual basis from the GEDTS.  The Department has a contract with Oklahoma Scoring for purposes of scoring the exams.  A contract is being negotiated by the Indiana Department of Education for purposes of printing the transcripts and diplomas.  That contract is expected in March.

There is no cost to the vendor for the exams or the scoring or the printing of the first set of transcripts and diploma.  Each vendor will be expected to have on staff at least one certified GED examiner and where needed at least one alternate certified examiner.  The costs of picking up and returning the exams to the Department’s Education Division is the responsibility of the vendor.  

Q4:  Is this a firm fixed price contract or a cost reimbursable plus fixed fee (CPFF) contract? There are so many unknown costs; it seems that it should be a CPFF contract.
A4: The IDOC desires a firm, fixed price contract.
Q5:  Clause 2.5, Page 28 - does not appear to specify a cost proposal for each facility. Do you want a grand total or a cost for each facility?

A5: The IDOC desires a grant total for a cost proposal for purposes of evaluation.  However, within the cost proposal, please specify how the costs will be distributed by facility.  
Q6:  Attachment B - Clause 6 –calls for an audit of the contract. Is that one audit for the entire contract? Should the audit costs be included in the contractors cost proposal?
A6:  The clause says the Contractor “may” be required to submit to an audit.  Generally this will not occur unless there is some indication that there is a problem or dispute with the contract.  If that should happen this clause allows for an audit to take place.  

Q7:  Attachment B - Clause 12 – Continuity of Services – Requires phase-in phase-out services. Should these costs be included in the contractors cost proposal?

A7:  No.  Phase in and phase out services, if required at the end of the vendor’s service to the state, will be determined at that time.
Q8:  Attachment B - Clause 27 - Refers to material, etc. – However, your answers to questions #1 and #2 must clarify this clause.
A8:  The successful vendor is responsible for any and all materials and supplies associated with the delivery model.  The vendor is also responsible for maintaining textbooks and related materials within the IDOE text book adoption guidelines.  The Department will not pay for any materials, supplies, consumables and textbooks once the vendor begins delivering services at a facility.

Q9:  Attachment B - Clause 34 – Payments – Refers to payments in arrears. Can I assume that invoices may be submitted monthly for previous month’s expenses?
A9:  Yes. Invoices may be submitted monthly for payment.

Q10:  Considering question #9, what is the experience in the actual payment of invoices, assuming no errors or changes 15, 30, 90 days?

A10:  The Auditor pays 35 days in arrears.
Q11:  Clause 2.7, Page 29 – Defines an Indiana Business. The small Business Administration defines a business as an organization that is profit seeking. Does a nonprofit qualify as a business in Indiana for purposes of clause 2.7?
A11:   A non-profit is not a business.  A business exists to make a profit. Statues for defining an Indiana Business are defined as deriving their income from the sale of a good or the production of a product or the provision of some service, therefore non-profits are excluded. 

Q12:  Please explain why there are only 3 classroom teachers at Camp Summit.  
A12:  Right now there are only three classroom teachers because the school was originally designed for a smaller population. IDOC is aware that additional teachers are needed for the existing population, and is addressing it through this RFP.
Q13:  Please provide information on the educational staffing and all other direct educational program costs that are currently covered through grants, the IDOC, or other Federal or State agencies. 
A13: Grants are restricted to supplemental spending.  Grants can not be used to supplant needed services.  
Q14:  During the intake process what assessments will each student be given? How and when will the assessment results be provided to the educational staff at the receiving facility?  
A14: The answer to this question has two germane parts. 

First, educational staff are responsible for the assessments related to education whether at the Intake facility at Logansport or as a part of the admission process at each facility.Any data provided by classification staff are included in a classification summary document that is made a part of the education file.  This report contains a group administered ability test. Although this test does not appear valid for educational purposes, it is available.

Second, education staff are responsible for:

                Test of Adult Basic Education (academic achievement)

                Self Directed Search (vocational interests)

                Student Styles Questionnaire (learning styles)

                Brigance (academic achievement)- used as needed to check the validity of the TABE and additional data for low achieving students.

Currently there is a division of responsibility, with an attempt to complete these tests at Intake, but the receiving facility has the responsibility to complete any testing that could not be completed at Intake. For example, if a student is segregated during his time at Intake, he might not complete required testing. Sometimes the validity of academic achievement testing at Intake is compromised due to poor effort on the part of newly incarcerated students. The receiving educational staff is responsible to verify the validity of testing (This most often is the TABE test. The receiving facility is responsible to retest any student who provided invalid test results.

These test data are summarized in the Individual Learning Plan (ILP) for non-disabled students. These data, along with individual psychoeducational testing that may be requested by the Intake Case Conference Committee, are summarized in the Individual Education Plan (IEP) for students with disabilities. 

Q15:  Is the actual educational plan for each student developed during the intake process or by the educational staff at the receiving facility?  
A15: The Individual Learning Plan or the IEP is developed at the local facility.
Q16:  Your expected
date of 
startup for each facility occurs in the middle of a regular school year. Many good teachers are already committed to a school district and will not be available for hire until the end of each June. You are unnecessarily restricting the teacher talent pool with these startup dates. Will you reconsider your startups for July, August, and September of each year so that the teacher talent pool can be significantly increased?  
A16:  No. Please see the answer to Q33 in Q&A, set 1.  The contract start up will be July 1, 2011, assuming full execution of the contract.
Q17:  Since this is a new program, would you consider multiple awards where contractor’s performance for each site may be measured in mutually agreeable objective measures such as GED competitors, credit hours awarded, etc? This contractor’s performance can be approved for award of option year.  
A17:  No, there will be one four-year contract for the four juvenile facilities listed.  The Contractor will be expected to provide services for all facilities under that contract.
Q18:  Due to the number of questions submitted, would you consider an extension in the due date so we can review your answers and organize our proposal accordingly?  
A18: No.
Q19 :1.14 (page 7): Type and Term of Contract

We understand that no more than one proposal per respondent may be submitted, but we also understand the RFP allows for the State to choose more than one vendor. What are the different options available for a respondent, and how will the state decide on multiple vendors, as appropriate?

Please provide clarification, including how this would affect the budget.   

A19: The IDOC desires to contract directly with one respondent.  Any different decision regarding contracting with multiple vendors will only arise once proposals are received.  
Q20:  1.21 (pg. 9) M/WBE Sub-Contractor Commitment

1. Can a subcontractor to the Respondent have a letter of commitment with a M/WBE and therefore qualify points under the Indiana M/WBE provisions?

2. Please clarify how the respondent should derive the commitment percentage of 8% for WBE and MBE.  Specifically, is this based on a one-year budget or the 4-year life of the contract. For each facility, or a total of all facilities proposed?

A20:  1.  A Letter of Commitment prepared (on the subcontractor’s letterhead) by the certified MBE/ WBE subcontractor should be forwarded to the respondent to be included in the proposal submission in order to receive points for scoring.
2  The 8% MBE & 8% WBE commitment percentages are based on the total bid amount submitted for the 4 year life of the contract.
Q21:  2.3.3 (Pg 13): Company Financial Information

1. The Company Financial Information (Section 2.3.3) references the requirement of the respondent’s financial statement, income statement and balance sheet.  Yet on pg 11 (Section 1.24), financial responsibility is written as “not required.”  Please explain. 

A21:  Section 1.24 would refer to a bond if requirement by this contract.  This is not required. 
Q22:  2.3.2 (Pg 13) Company Structure

1. On the Business Proposal Information Section, respondents are required to give company structure, financial information, etc.  Are subcontractors also required to include this information in the proposal?

A22:  No, see 2.3.9 for requirements for Sub-Contractors. 
Q23:  2.4.1 (page 17-18): Facilities and Student Populations

1. Section B: Is education funding separate from facility operations budget?  

2. Section C: The IDOC website has some Policy and Procedures, but where can we access a complete set?  
A23: 1. Education budgets are within each facility budget.  However, historically once a system contract is in place has moved the budget to the Central Office fiscal area.  
2. An entire set would be almost impossible to provide.  The entire set encompasses an expandable file that is over eight feet wide at this time.  
Q24:  2.4.2 (page 18): Independent Contractor

1. What is IDOC’s willingness to partner with outside contractor?  
2. Is this a fluid partnership?  
3. Is the school administrator part of the campus management team and involved in the planning/decision making process?  
A24: 1. The Department has a long and successful history of truly partnering with contractors to meet the needs of offenders in a variety of settings and undertakings.  
2. The Department is always seeking evidence-based practices that provide benefits the offenders, the Department, and the State’s citizens.  

3. Yes.  

Q25:  2.4.3 (page 18): Curriculum

1. Section C: Request copy of Indiana’s Core 40 Diploma and Courses typically provided in Indiana Middle School Programs.  
2. Does middle school programming need to be provided at all sites or only those with younger aged placements?  If so, which ones?  

A25: 1. Please see the Indiana Department of Education website regarding requirements and courses.  
2. If a facility houses offenders eligible for middle school courses, the vendor will provide sufficient staff to meet the need.  
Q26:  2.4.4 (page 20): Class Size

1. What is the role of the IDOC staff @ each site during school hours?  
A26: The Department staffs each facility with sufficient staff to maintain the security and safety of offenders and staff.  
Q27:  2.4.5 (page 21): Employment of Professional Staff   
1. Section B: How many Holidays are recognized each year?

a. Please provide a copy of the State of Indiana Holiday Calendar.

2. Section E: What does the IDOC training consist of?

a. How many hours? 
Training Schedule?

3. Is the orientation training a one time deal or is there recertification trainings throughout the year?

4. Request copies of the IDOC training requirements and curriculum.  

5. Section F: Can Respondents use Indiana State system to expedite background clearance?  
6. Who is responsible for paying for the background clearance?  
7. Section G and H: Please clarify this section regarding the removal of employees. 

a. Our staff are not IDOC staff?  We will handle discipline per ROP Policy

b. If IDOC “requests” removal, do we have to do this? What is the appeal process.  
c. Is the violation of policies related back specifically to the training education staff will receive re: IDOC facilities?  
A27:
1. State Holiday Calendar for 2011 is attached.
2. Please see the training attachments.
3. Please see the training attachments.
4. Please see the training attachments.
5. Yes.  All criminal background checks must go through the IDOC central office.  

6. IDOC.

7. a. We will handle discipline per ROP Policy

    b. Yes.  Upon request staff are removed.  No appeal.  
   c. Yes.  

Q28:  2.4.6 (page 22): Schedule

1. Section D: How are the educational needs of students met in these units? How many hours of education each day are being received? What is the method of instruction?

A28:  Services on provided on site as required by a certified instructor working with the school’s administrator and the student’s regular teachers.  The number of hours is dependent on the level of security required by the student.  Typically, teachers work one-on-one with those who have been removed from the regular school setting. Hours of education per day are student dependent.    
Q29:  2.4.8 (page 23): Reporting of Performance Data

Section B: Is there oversight (audits, site visits, monitoring) of each site by the Department of Education? What is the DOJ oversight at Pendleton? Is there technical support by the Department of Education?
A29:  IDOE always has the legal right to conduct site visits.  As a general rule this has been confined in the past with Title One issues as well as the delivery of special education services.  
Technical support from IDOE is based on a specific request through the Department’s central office staff.

DOJ is monitoring the Pendleton group.  The written report from their last visit has not been sent to IDOC.
Q30:  2.4.11 (page 25): Federal and State Grant Funds
1. We received a hand-out during the bidder’s conference of Title 1 positions. What is the funding duration for each of these positions?  
2. Is Title 1 funding separate from the contract dollar amount? 
3. Are any of the sites currently receiving state and/or federal grants?  If so, what sites and what grants?  
4. Are these funds over the contract amount or included?   
5. What happens when these Title I positions are no longer funded, will the contract be augmented?  
6. Should the vendor choose to fund our own support positions (e.g. Librarian, Special Education Admin Assistant, and Transition Coordinator) that are currently being funded through grants, would the total funding be enhanced? In other words, would the contract amount be increased should a respondent fund Title I positions?  

7. Regarding Grant Funded positions at sites (e.g., Librarian, Special Education Coordinator, etc.), to what extent will the winning contractor be involved in the evaluation or supervision of these employees?  
a. Are these staff considered state employees or employees of a employment agency?   
A30:

1. One year

2. Yes

3. As detailed in prior meetings, the Central Office receives Title One grants and Special Education federal pass through grants.  The annual amount is based on performance and student enrollments.  The above grants are awarded to IDOC and are used to provide supplemental materials and services to the students.  

4. These funds do not impact the contract.  

5. If and when that should happen, the Department may elect to re open negotiations.  

6. At this time, no.

7. Performance Evaluations are completed by the local school administrator followed by consultation with the facility superintendent and IDOC Central Office staff.  


a. Employees of the contract agency.  

Q31:  2.4.13 (pages 25-26): Student Records

1. Section B: Does Department of Education have a statewide data base for tracking student records?  
2. Request copies of Department’s Policy and Procedures #8330  
A31:
1. No.

2. We have no 8330 in IDOC.  This may be a policy inside the Indiana Department of Education.  

Q32:  2.4.14 (page 26): Assessments

1. Section A: What assessments are currently being used in each facility for new students? Are there other assessments that the educational provider can implement?

2. Section B: Please elaborate on the meetings that the respondent’s staff will participate in. How often are these meetings? Is it a requirement for an educator to be present @ all meetings or can a written report be submitted? 
3. Section C: Regarding the transfer of records and other pertinent information to facilitate the student’s successful enrollment in public school – what software packages are IDOC currently using?  

a. Will that be available to the respondent or will they need to provide their own package?

b. Will upgrades (equipment and software) be the responsibility of the vendor?

c. Who is responsible for software agreements?

A32:
1. Currently, each facility uses the TABE assessment scores that is sent with the student from the INTAKE unit.  In addition, if the INTAKE unit staff have time to assess the students with BRIGANCE, these scores are also sent to the facility.  When the student arrives at the facility, additional assessments are used for Career Interest (SDS: Self-Directed Search by Dr. Holland) and SSQ (Student Styles Questionnaire).  If the educational provider wants to use other assessments, this is permissible.  Please note the only exception: TABE (Test of Adult Basic Education) MUST be utilized as the Pre-Post test to measure academic growth.

2. A representative from the Education staff must be present at the meetings unless the facility Superintendent decides otherwise.  Some of the meetings include, but are not limited to:

•
Daily Incident Monitoring Meeting, 

•
Department Head Meetings (at the Discretion of the Facility Superintendent), 

•
Weekly Classification Meetings, 

•
Weekly Transition Meetings, 

•
Weekly Administrative Review Committee (ARC) meetings, 

•
Weekly Mental Health Staffing Meetings.

3. IDOC is currently using SIMS (Student Information Management System).  This is not negotiable: the vendor must use SIMS.  IDOC will pay for the upkeep and support of SIMS. 


a. SIMS is available to the respondent and the respondent will NOT be permitted to use its own software package.

b. Upgrades to SIMS are not the responsibility of the vendor.  The vendor assumes the responsibility of maintaining equipment.
c. IDOC is responsible for SIMS agreements.
Q33:  2.4.15 (page 27): Facility, Equipment and Supplies

1. Will we need to replace all current equipment, books, computers etc?

2. Regarding the furniture, Fixtures and Equipment (FFE):
a. What are they required to bring in year one?  Are there computers available?  Text books (if so, which ones and are they current)? A server, etc.? 
A33:  Any equipment, books, computers, furniture, etc within each school will remain.    It is the vendor’s responsibility to replace equipment as needed such as computers, copiers, servers as needed.  Textbooks will be replaced within the guidelines of the Indiana Department’s Textbook guidelines.  
Q34:  2.4.16 (page 27-28): Discipline and Control of Juvenile Offenders

1. Section E: How many IDOC staff is on site during school hours to respond to emergencies?

2. How are issues dealt with if there is only one IDOC staff present in the school?

3. Are there IDOC staff present in the Detention/Segregation unit during school?

4. What form of physical restraint is used by IDOC? 

A34:
1. All IDOC staff are trained to respond to emergencies.  

2. There are sufficient IDOC staff present in the school.

3. Yes, there are IDOC staff that are assigned to the Segregation units.

4. Personal Protection is the form of physical restraint that is used by IDOC.  

Q35:  Section 2.5 (Page 29) Cost Proposal

1. What is the “basic education” annual rate for a youth?  What is the additional amount for special education designation?   
2. The implementation for services is staggered based on a sequence of facilities. How soon can the contractor get inside a facility prior to actual delivery of services?  
3. What does IDOC anticipate the start-up costs to be?   
4. Will the start up costs be included when looking to see if the budget is below current cost or will that be excluded?  
A35:
1. There is no “basic education” annual rate for adjudicated, incarcerated delinquents in Indiana.  The supplemental grant for those receiving special education services within IDOC juvenile facilities is a fluid number based on the total population, state-wide for all youth.  

2. The next day.  

3. The IDOC did not establish start up costs considering that part of each vendor’s discretionary consideration.  

4. Start up costs are included in the total bid per facility and the overall annual costs.  

Q36:Section 2.7 (Page 29) Buy Indiana Initiative/Indiana Company

Please clarify the requirements of the Buy Indiana Initiative (policy #5: substantial positive economic impact), specifically “if an out-of-state company does not meet one of these criteria, it can submit documentation/justification to the State for review for inclusions under this category”  
A36:    The following is the policy concerning items 4 & 5 described below.  Appropriate documentation must be provided with your proposal response supporting either claim made below:

(4) 
A business that makes significant capital investments in Indiana.
(5) 
A business that has a substantial positive economic impact on 
Indiana.

If claiming under #4 the following applies:

 Substantial Capital Investment: 

Any company that can demonstrate a minimum capital investment of $5 million or more in plant and/or equipment or annual lease payments of $2.5 million or more shall qualify as an Indiana business under category #4.  If an out of state company does not meet one of these criteria, it can submit documentation/justification to the State for review for inclusion under this category.

If claiming under #5 the following applies:

Substantial Indiana Economic Impact:

Any company that is in the top 500 companies (adjusted) for one of the following categories: number of employees (DWD), unemployment taxes (DWD), payroll withholding taxes (DOR), or Corporate Income Taxes (DOR); it shall qualify as an Indiana business under category #5.  If a Respondent needs assistance in determining if its business qualifies under this criterion, please send an email inquiry to buyindianainvest@idoa.in.gov and you will receive a response within forty-eight (48) hours.  If an out of state company does not meet one of these criteria, it can submit documentation/justification to the State for review for inclusion under this category.

This information should be submitted with your proposal.

Q37:  On the Sample Contract (Attachment B), please clarify Section 2: Consideration. Specifically, it says that the Contractor shall be paid in arrears.  What are the payment terms? 

     A37:  Monthly invoicing will occur and the State pays 35 days in arrears. 
Q38:  Would having an Indiana subcontractor allow a respondent to receive the maximum Buy Indiana points?
A38:  Not necessarily. Points will be awarded based on a graduated scale.  The Respondent with the most Indiana FTEs will be awarded 15 points.  Points will then be awarded to the remaining Respondents proportionately.  

Q39:  With the fluctuation in population at facilities, would IDOC want the successful bidder to hire individuals that would be able to be moved from one facility to another in situations that dictate a need for more or less teachers?
A39:  The Department expects the successful vendor to meet the educational needs of the population regardless of physical location.  If the successful vendor’s personnel policy allows for shifting, then the Department would accept that.  
Q40:  In regard to vocational programming throughout the system, would IDOC prefer the successful bidder to replace existing programs, add to them, or maintain the same programming?  
A40: The Department welcomes innovative programs within the context of the high school diploma requirements of Indiana.  If a program is deleted, then a comparable program outlining the justification for that program must be detailed in the proposal.  
Q41:  Is implementation of C-Tech program mandatory for providing career tech programs at Logansport? 

A41:  While it not mandatory and the Department welcomes alternative proposals, please note the success of the program to date and the availability of current grants to fund the program.  
Q42:  If the successful bidder does not include a specific vocational program in their winning proposal, would the space and/or equipment utilized for the previous vocational program be available for use in other capacities by the successful bidder?  
A42: The other state agencies associated with the Department expect vocational programs to be part of the proposed delivery model.  
Q43:  Regarding Camp Summit Boot Camp new education complex:
a. What is the site plan if the funding and approval for the new complex is denied?

b. Is the vendor expected to have the same number of staff if the funding is denied?

c. What is the number of teachers expected at Camp Summit given the current physical plant limitation? 
d. What are we expected to staff  Camp Summit once the renovations are completed?  
A43:
a. To continue to provide legal education services to the population housed at Summit.  

b. The vendor is expected to provide staffing in sufficient numbers to meet the needs of the student population within the limitations of the physical plant.  

c. At a minimum the proposal needs to address the current staffing patterns.  

d. The expectation is that the vendor will staff the education program to the necessary level of compliance.  

Q44:  What is the current breakdown of salary and benefits for all current education staff at all four facilities?   

A44: July 1 2009 – June 30 2010

 

Summit – Salary $275,066.90

                    Fringe $75,991.64

 

South Bend Juv – Salary $711,394.31

                                    Fringe $233,305.83

 

Logan – Salary $1,015,037.88

                 Fringe $364,247.33

 

Pendleton Juv – Salary $1,760,992.99

                                  Fringe $616,328.50

Q45:  Will the Department/Central Office continue to pay for GED testing?  
A45: At this time the Department expects to continue to fund the GETS annual lease and the scoring contract.  
Q46:  Will the IDOC make available any current staff who is still interested in continued employment at the facilities? Upon notification of award and for planning purposes, will the awarded vendor have access to contact information for education staff?
A46: The Department will make available to the impacted staff the contact information of the successful vendor.  

Q47:  Are teachers expected to be involved in community service or any other activity outside the facilities? 

A47:  No.  However, for example, there is an expectation of involvement in organizations that directly impact the delivery model such as Advisory Committees for Vocational Programs that are community based.  
